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From: Scearce, Lynn
To: david@orlando-green.com
Cc: Lubozynski, Tom; "Ceron, Heather"; McWade, Tammy; Arif, Syed; Scearce, Lynn
Subject: 0951347-001-AC, Orlando Green, LLC, Orlando Facility, Request for Additional Information
Date: Thursday, August 29, 2013 2:20:59 PM
Attachments: 0951347-001-AC RAI - Initial Signed.pdf
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Dear Mr. Brosnan: 


Attached is the Request for Additional Information for the project referenced above.


Note:  We must receive verification that you are able to access the documents. Your immediate reply will preclude
subsequent e-mail transmissions to verify accessibility of the document(s).


If you have any problems opening the documents or would like further information, please
contact the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Office of Permitting and
Compliance.


Lynn Scearce


Office of Permitting and Compliance (OPC)
Division of Air Resource Management – DEP
2600 Blair Stone Road, Mail Stop 5505
Phone:  850-717-9025


 


 


 


Please take a few minutes to share your comments on the service you received from the department
by clicking on this link. DEP Customer Survey.



mailto:/O=FLORIDADEP/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=LYNN.SCEARCE
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Electronic Mail – Received Receipt Requested 



David Brosnan, Technical Manager 
Orlando Green, LLC 
30 Fourth Street Southwest 
Winter Haven, Florida  33880 



Re: Request for Additional Information 
Project No. 0951347-001-AC 
Orlando Green, LLC, Orlando Facility 
Solid Waste Recycling and Renewable Energy Project 



Dear Mr. Brosnan: 



On August 5, 2013, we received your application and sufficient fee for an air construction permit to construct 
Orlando Green-Orlando Facility, which will be a new recycling/renewable energy facility.  Primarily, the 
proposed plant will separate recyclable material from the municipal solid waste (MSW) and the remainder of the 
MSW will go through a pyrolysis process equipped with a synthetic gas (syngas) cleanup train to generate a clean 
syngas fuel.  The syngas fuel will be fired in five internal combustion (IC) engine/generator sets to produce a 
nominal 8.0 megawatts (MW) of power to the electrical grid.  The facility will be located in Orange County at 
753 Central Florida Parkway in Orlando, Florida.  The application indicates that the project is subject to general a 
preconstruction review pursuant to rule 62-212.300 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).   



While reviewing the air construction permit application, the Department has determined that additional 
information is required to allow the application to continue to be processed.  In accordance with Rule 62-4.055, 
F.A.C., please provide the information requested below within 90 days of receiving this request.  Should your 
response to any of the requested items require new calculations, please submit the new calculations, assumptions, 
reference material and appropriate revised pages of the application form. 



On August 16, 2013, a teleconference was held with Orlando Green, LLC, discussing the following issues for the 
proposed construction of a new recycling center and renewable energy facility:  changes in the process described 
in the application; revised and update potential emissions emitted from the project; and the process used in 
producing a clean syngas.  Based on the discussions held in this teleconference the Department request that the 
following additional information be provided and sealed by a Professional Engineer (P.E.) licensed in the State of 
Florida, to complete the application: 



Application and Emissions 



Based on information provided in the application, the Department understands the project involves the 
construction of a new recycling center and renewable energy facility.   



1. Recycling Center:  The recycling center will process a maximum of 700 tons/day (TPD) of MSW received 
from off-site and remove recyclable (organics, tires, plastics, paper, wood, etc.) and inert materials (glass, 
metals, stones, and soils).  The inert and recyclable materials will be stored inside an enclosed building until 
removed off-site.  The remaining carbonaceous material will be shredded, blended and dried in two bio-dryers 
using heat captured from a heat recovery steam generator (HRSG).  Each dryer will be equipped with two fuel 
oil fired startup burners that will be used in the absence of heat received from the HRSG.  Wastewater 
produced from the dryers will be sent to an on-site wastewater treatment plant and the dried material will be 
fed into a primary and secondary separator prior to being fed to the energy recovery process.  Please confirm 
this is an accurate description of the processes involved in the recycling center and, if it is not please provide 
an accurate description to the Department. 
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[Rule 62-4.707(1) Reasonable Assurance, F.A.C.] 



2. Renewable Energy Process:  The renewable energy process will receive the dried material and transfer it into 
one of the two pyrolysis chambers. Each pyrolysis unit has a maximum charging capacity of 105 TPD for a 
combined total of 210 TPD of MSW.  Pyrolysis is a thermal treatment process that uses high temperatures, in 
the absence of oxygen, to break down carbonaceous waste during which syngas, oil and a solid char are 
produced.  The oil and char will be removed from site.  The syngas cleanup process following the pyrolysis 
units will include a selective non-catalytic reduction (SNCR) control device, a wet scrubber and a packed bed 
scrubber. The scrubbing operation will remove particulate matter, hydrocarbons, and soluble matter from the 
syngas prior to being fired in four of the five Caterpillar (Model G3520C) engines, one engine will be used 
for backup purposes only.  An enclosed flare will be used as additional combustion devices for the off-
specification syngas.  Heat from the pyrolysis process and engines will be captured using a HRSG.  The 
HSRG will direct steam to the MSW dryers.  The four engines will be capable of generating a total of 8.0 
MW of power (2.0 MW per CAT G3520C).  The engines will be equipped with a SCR to control emission of 
nitrogen oxide (NOX) and carbon monoxide (CO).  However, based on information provided by the applicant, 
this is not a complete and accurate characterization of the proposed project.  The following items need to be 
addressed and identified in the application: 



a. Please provide a new process flow diagram and a detailed description of the project. 



b. The application states that the char, oils and liquid bio-fuels generated in the pyrolysis will be removed 
from the site.  However, the applicant has explained that these byproducts will actually be recycled back 
through the pyrolysis process.   



(1) Please identify what byproducts will be produced from the pyrolysis process.   



(2) Explain how these byproducts will be processed and recycled back into the pyrolysis process. 



c. Based on the application, the pyrolysis process includes a syngas cleanup process, which is composed of 
a SNCR control device, a wet scrubber and a packed bed scrubber.  According to the applicant an SNCR 
will not be installed and the syngas cleanup train will consist of cooling, cleaning and conditioning the 
syngas in a venturi quench, wash towers and a gas scrubber prior to being fired in the engines.  Please 
provide a detailed description and process flow diagram of the syngas cleaning and conditioning system, 
including: 



(1) The equipment used in the syngas treatment system, the control efficiencies of this equipment and 
any other supporting information including vendor guarantees. 



(2) Identify the pollutants (contaminates) that will be removed through the syngas cleaning process. 



d. The application states that the pyrolysis unit’s exhaust will be controlled by an SNCR to reduce NOx 
emissions.  However, the applicant explained that the pyrolysis units will not include an SNCR.  The 
Pyrolysis Units – Potential Emission table provided in Appendix C of the application states that the 
emission factors used in calculating the potential emissions for all of the criteria pollutants including 
HAPs were provided by the manufacturer specifications for the pyrolysis units with exhaust controls.  
Please provide revised potential emissions for the pyrolysis units (if applicable), the pyrolysis units 
manufacturer’s specifications and/or other supporting information to the Department providing reasonable 
assurance that the emission factors used in determining the potential emissions for the pyrolysis units will 
be met.  According to Rule 62-4.070(1), F.A.C. reasonable assurance can be based on plans, test results, 
installation of pollution control equipment, or other information, that the construction, operation or 
activity of the installation will not discharge, emit, or cause pollution in contravention of Department 
standards or rules. 



e. The process flow diagram submitted with the application shows that the syngas, prior to being cleaned, 
will be combusted in an enclosed flare.  However, the applicant explained that only the cleaned syngas 
will be combusted in the flare.   
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(1) Please explain the process and identify what the syngas will be composed of prior to being combusted 
in the flare.   



(2) Please provide information on the type of flare (enclosed or open) that is going to be used.  An 
enclosed flare is not typically used in this type of application.  Please clarify and provide the 
following information on the flare:  the maximum volumetric flow rate to the flare; maximum heat 
input rate; and the overall destruction efficiency of the flare. 



f. According to the applicant, the gas stream will pass through the HSRG and then will go through a 
particulate matter control device (dust collection system).  The dust collected within the system will be 
used to manufacture bollards, short vertical posts used to direct road traffic.   



(1) Please identify the type of dust collection system used and the control efficiency.   



(2) Please identify and explain the manufacturing process of the bollards and any emissions and 
equipment used in the process. 



g. The application states that the five CAT G3520C engines/electrical generators will be equipped with an 
SCR and will exhaust through a common stack.  According to the applicant, the engines will not include 
an SCR.  However, reductions of NOx and CO emissions were based on the installation of the SCR. 



(1) Please provide revised potential emissions for the engines.   



(2) Please provide Caterpillar (CAT Model G3520C) engines/generators vendor data sheets.   



[Rules 62-210.200(PTE) and 62-4.707(1), Reasonable Assurance, F.A.C.] 



3. Emergency Generators:  The application states that the proposed diesel fired emergency generators are 
categorically exempt from permitting in accordance Rule 62-210.300(3)(a)(35), F.A.C.  Please identify the 
emergency generators including:  the year manufactured; if the engines have manufacturers certification; 
engine displacement (liters/cylinder); and explain how these engines meet the categorical exemption from 
permitting.   



[Rules 62-210.200(PTE) and 62-4.707(1), Reasonable Assurance, F.A.C.] 



4. Facility-Wide Green House Gas Emissions:  The facility-wide potential emissions identified in the application 
are shown in Table 3-1 and in Appendix C.  Facility-wide emissions of carbon dioxide (CO2) are shown to be 
13,792 tons/year (TPY) (Table 3-1) and 19,837 TPY (Appendix C).  Please clarify emissions of CO2.  
Additionally, the char produced from the pyrolysis units is a solid residue rich in carbon.  It is the 
Departments understanding that the char will be recycled back through the pyrolysis process.  Please identify 
CO2 emission increases due to this change in the pyrolysis process.  Please note that on July 12, 2013, the 
D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals vacated EPA’s biogenic deferral rule, which deferred regulation of biogenic 
CO2 emissions for three years.  In accordance with these changes, please provide calculations showing any 
increases in CO2 emissions that will be produced using the solid carbon char as a fuel and that biogenic CO2 
emissions were included in determining greenhouse gas emissions.   



[Rule 62-4.707(1), Reasonable Assurance, F.A.C.] 



5. Major Source PSD Threshold and Potential to Emit:  Based on information provided in the application, the 
proposed pyrolysis units will have a total capacity to charge approximately 210 TPD of refuse; therefore 
according to Rule 62-210.200(194), F.A.C. the facility will not be considered a major source if all PSD 
pollutants are below the 250 TPY threshold.  Based on the additional information provided in response to this 
request for additional information, the project may be subject to PSD preconstruction review if the revised 
facility-wide emissions show that any of the PSD criteria pollutants exceed the 250 TPY threshold.  Please 
identify any new/revised emissions increases and new facility-wide potential emissions.  In particular, the 
revised emissions for the engines, pyrolysis process and potential emission from the proposed manufacturing 
process as requested above. 



[Rules 62-210.200(PTE); 62-212.400(BACT); and 62-4.707(1), Reasonable Assurance, F.A.C.]   
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Syngas Analysis 



6. In determining if the pyrolysis process is subject to the applicable requirements of New Source Performance 
Standards (NSPS) Subpart AAAA (Standards of Performance for Small Municipal Waste Combustion Units 
for which Construction is Commenced after August 30, 1999 or for which Modifications or Reconstruction is 
Commenced after June 6, 2001) of 40 CFR 60, the Department will need the following information to 
establish if the syngas that is produced from the  pyrolysis of MSW is a non-hazardous secondary material 
(NHSM) used as a fuel.  The syngas to qualify as a NHSM fuel must meet the “legitimacy criteria” in 
determining if it is comparable to a “traditional fuel” as defined in EPA’s Solid Wastes Subpart A (General-
Definitions) of 40 CFR 241.2, which reads: 



Traditional fuels means materials that are produced as fuels and are unused products that have not 
been discarded and therefore, are not solid wastes, including: (1) Fuels that have been historically 
managed as valuable fuel products rather than being managed as waste materials, including fossil 
fuels ( e.g., coal, oil and natural gas), their derivatives ( e.g., petroleum coke, bituminous coke, coal 
tar oil, refinery gas, synthetic fuel, heavy recycle, asphalts, blast furnace gas, recovered gaseous 
butane, and coke oven gas) and cellulosic biomass (virgin wood); and (2) alternative fuels developed 
from virgin materials that can now be used as fuel products, including used oil which meets the 
specifications outlined in 40 CFR 279.11, currently mined coal refuse that previously had not been 
usable as coal, and clean cellulosic biomass. These fuels are not secondary materials or solid wastes 
unless discarded. 



a. Please describe the processing that the syngas goes through prior to being combusted in the engines. 



b. Please describe the contaminates that are expected to be in the syngas after it is released from the 
pyrolysis units and how the processing removes these contaminates, specifically focusing on metals, and 
precursor elements such as, chlorine, fluorine, nitrogen and sulfur. 



c. Please describe what fuels the engines are “designed to burn” and which of these fuels qualify as a 
“traditional fuel.” 



d. Please provide information on the contaminate profile of each traditional fuel the engines are designed to 
burn and compare these values to the contaminates that exist in the syngas after processing. 



e. If any contaminants are at higher levels than the traditional fuel, please describe how the increase is not a 
significant increase (i.e. an increase that does not threaten public health or the environment). 



f. Please describe the heating value of the syngas after it has been processed. 



g. Please describe how the syngas is managed as a valuable commodity (i.e. provide a description of how 
the syngas is managed as a similar gaseous fuel). 



[Rules 62-210.200(PTE); 62-212.400(BACT); and 62-4.707(1), Reasonable Assurance, F.A.C.]   



We will resume processing your application after receipt of the requested information.  You are reminded that 
Rule 62-4.055(1), F.A.C. requires applicants to respond to requests for information within 90 days or to provide a 
written request for an additional period of time to submit the information.  If you have any questions regarding 
this matter, please contact the project engineer, Tammy McWade, at 850/717-9086 or email 
tammy.mcwade@dep.state.fl.us.
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Sincerely, 
 
 
 



 
 
for Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator 



Office of Permitting and Compliance 
Division of Air Resource Management 



 
 
 
This letter was sent to the following people by electronic mail with received receipt requested. 
 
Mr. David Brosnan, Orlando Green:  david@orlando-green.com  
Mr. Tom Lubozynski, Central District:  tom.lubozynski@dep.state.fl.us 
Ms. Heather Ceron, U.S. EPA Region 4:  ceron.heather@epa.gov  
Ms. Lynn Scearce, DEP OPC:  lynn.scearce@dep.state.fl.us  








						2013-08-29T13:15:29-0400


			Syed Arif

























From: Microsoft Outlook
To: Lubozynski, Tom
Subject: Delivered: 0951347-001-AC, Orlando Green, LLC, Orlando Facility, Request for Additional Information
Date: Thursday, August 29, 2013 2:20:59 PM


Your message has been delivered to the following recipients:
HYPERLINK "mailto:Tom.Lubozynski@dep.state.fl.us"Lubozynski, Tom
Subject: 0951347-001-AC, Orlando Green, LLC, Orlando Facility, Request for Additional Information 
  _____  
Sent by Microsoft Exchange Server 2007



mailto:/O=FLORIDADEP/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=MICROSOFTEXCHANGE329E71EC88AE4615BBC36AB6CE41109E

mailto:Tom.Lubozynski@dep.state.fl.us






From: Microsoft Outlook
To: McWade, Tammy; Scearce, Lynn; Arif, Syed
Subject: Delivered: 0951347-001-AC, Orlando Green, LLC, Orlando Facility, Request for Additional Information
Date: Thursday, August 29, 2013 2:20:59 PM


Your message has been delivered to the following recipients:
HYPERLINK "mailto:Tammy.McWade@dep.state.fl.us"McWade, Tammy
HYPERLINK "mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us"Scearce, Lynn
HYPERLINK "mailto:Syed.Arif@dep.state.fl.us"Arif, Syed
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

mailto:Tammy.McWade@dep.state.fl.us

mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us

mailto:Syed.Arif@dep.state.fl.us






From: Mail Delivery System
To: Ceron.Heather@epa.gov
Subject: Expanded: 0951347-001-AC, Orlando Green, LLC, Orlando Facility, Request for Additional Information
Date: Thursday, August 29, 2013 2:21:03 PM


Your message has been delivered to the following distribution lists:
HYPERLINK "mailto:Ceron.Heather@epa.gov"Ceron.Heather@epa.gov
Subject: 0951347-001-AC, Orlando Green, LLC, Orlando Facility, Request for Additional Information 



mailto:MAILER-DAEMON@mintra11.rtp.epa.gov

mailto:Ceron.Heather@epa.gov






From: David Brosnan
To: Scearce, Lynn
Cc: Lubozynski, Tom; "Ceron, Heather"; McWade, Tammy; Arif, Syed
Subject: RE: 0951347-001-AC, Orlando Green, LLC, Orlando Facility, Request for Additional Information
Date: Friday, August 30, 2013 6:52:54 AM
Attachments: image001.png


Hi Lynn


 


I have received the document and I am able to read it with no problems.


 


Thank you


 


Regards


David Brosnan
Project consultant & sales manager
Tel: 352 227 1383
Cell: 407-492-0492
USA address: C/o 30 Fourth St S.W.
                                      Winter Haven
                                       Florida, 33880
e-mail: david@orlando-green.com
web: www.orlando-green.com
 
European address: Limerick Business Complex,
                                       Raheen Business Park,
                                       Raheen,                     
                                       Co. Limerick, Ireland.
 
Tel: + 353 (0)61 748522
Mob: + 353 (0)87 2681952
Fax: + 353 (0)61 225131
Skype name: davidbrosnan1952
e-mail: david@wastetopower.ie
web: www.wastetopower.ie
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From: Scearce, Lynn [mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us] 
Sent: 29 August 2013 19:21
To: david@orlando-green.com
Cc: Lubozynski, Tom; 'Ceron, Heather'; McWade, Tammy; Arif, Syed; Scearce, Lynn
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



http://survey.dep.state.fl.us/?refemail=Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us






From: Lubozynski, Tom
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Read: 0951347-001-AC, Orlando Green, LLC, Orlando Facility, Request for Additional Information
Date: Thursday, August 29, 2013 5:27:59 PM


Your message was read on Thursday, August 29, 2013 5:27:57 PM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).



mailto:/O=FLORIDADEP/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=TOM.LUBOZYNSKI

mailto:/O=FLORIDADEP/OU=First Administrative Group/cn=Recipients/cn=Lynn.Scearce






From: Scearce, Lynn
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Read: 0951347-001-AC, Orlando Green, LLC, Orlando Facility, Request for Additional Information
Date: Thursday, August 29, 2013 3:00:50 PM


Your message was read on Thursday, August 29, 2013 3:00:49 PM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).
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From: Ceron, Heather
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Read: 0951347-001-AC, Orlando Green, LLC, Orlando Facility, Request for Additional Information
Date: Thursday, August 29, 2013 2:23:10 PM


Your message was read on Thursday, August 29, 2013 2:22:19 PM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).



mailto:Ceron.Heather@epa.gov
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From: Arif, Syed
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Read: 0951347-001-AC, Orlando Green, LLC, Orlando Facility, Request for Additional Information
Date: Thursday, August 29, 2013 2:21:07 PM


Your message was read on Thursday, August 29, 2013 2:21:05 PM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).



mailto:/O=FLORIDADEP/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SYED.ARIF
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From: David Brosnan
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Read: 0951347-001-AC, Orlando Green, LLC, Orlando Facility, Request for Additional Information
Date: Friday, August 30, 2013 6:52:05 AM


Your message was read on Friday, August 30, 2013 6:59:25 AM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).
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From: Microsoft Outlook
To: "david@orlando-green.com"
Subject: Relayed: 0951347-001-AC, Orlando Green, LLC, Orlando Facility, Request for Additional Information
Date: Thursday, August 29, 2013 2:21:01 PM


Delivery to these recipients or distribution lists is complete, but delivery notification was not sent by the destination:
HYPERLINK "mailto:david@orlando-green.com"'david@orlando-green.com'
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
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